Public Document Pack

Wyre Borough Council
Date of Publication: 30 June 2021
Please ask for : Peter Foulsham
Democratic Services and Scrutiny Manager
Tel: 01253 887606
Dear Councillor,
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Wyre Borough Council to be held at the
Civic Centre, Breck Road, Poulton-le-Fylde on Thursday, 8 July 2021 commencing at 7.00
pm.
Yours sincerely,

Garry Payne
Chief Executive

COUNCIL AGENDA
1.

Apologies for absence

2.

Confirmation of minutes

(Pages 5 - 12)

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meetings of
the Council held on 22 April 2021 and 13 May 2021
respectively.
3.

Declarations of Interest
To receive any declarations of interest from any Member on
any item on this agenda.

4.

Cabinet membership and responsibilities
Report of Councillor David Henderson, Leader of the Council
and Garry Payne, Chief Executive.

5.

Announcements
To receive any announcements from the Mayor, Leader of
the Council, Deputy Leader of the Council, Members of the
Cabinet, a Chairman of a Committee or the Chief Executive.

(Pages 13 - 16)

6.

Public questions or statements
To receive any questions or statements from members of the
public under Procedure Rule 9.1.

7.

Questions "On Notice" from councillors
To receive any questions from Members of the Council to the
Mayor, a member of the Cabinet or the Chairman of a
Committee under Council Procedure Rule 12.1.

8.

Executive reports
To receive reports from Cabinet Members. (In accordance
with Procedure Rule 11.3 councillors will be able to ask
questions or make comments).

9.

(a)

Leader of the Council (Councillor Henderson)

(Pages 17 - 20)

(b)

Resources Portfolio Holder (Councillor M Vincent)

(Pages 21 - 22)

(c)

Street Scene, Parks and Open Spaces Portfolio
Holder (Councillor Bridge)

(Pages 23 - 38)

(d)

Planning Policy and Economic Development Portfolio
Holder (Councillor Alice Collinson)

(Pages 39 - 42)

(e)

Neighbourhood Services and Community Safety
Portfolio Holder (Councillor Berry)

(Pages 43 - 48)

(f)

Leisure, Health and Community Engagement
Portfolio Holder (Councillor Bowen)

(Pages 49 - 54)

Treasury management activity 2020/21

(Pages 55 - 64)

Report of Councillor Michael Vincent, Resources Portfolio
Holder and Clare James, Corporate Director Resources and
S151 Officer.
10.

Updating net-zero emissions targets

(Pages 65 - 68)

Report of Councillor David Henderson, Leader of the Council.
11.

Appointments to committees and groups

(Pages 69 - 70)

Report of Councillor David Henderson, Leader of the Council
and Garry Payne, Chief Executive.
12.

Appointment to outside body
Report of Councillor David Henderson, Leader of the Council
and Garry Payne, Chief Executive.

(Pages 71 - 72)

13.

Notices of Motion
None.

If you have any enquiries on this agenda, please contact Peter Foulsham, tel: 01253 887606,
email: peter.foulsham@wyre.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Public Document Pack

Agenda Item 2

Council Minutes
The minutes of the Council meeting held on Thursday, 22 April 2021 in the Members’
Lounge, Civic Centre, Poulton-le-Fylde and remotely via WebEx.

Councillors present:
The Mayor, Councillor Andrea Kay and the Deputy Mayor, Councillor Howard Ballard
Councillors A Turner, B Birch, I Amos, R Amos, Armstrong, Lady D Atkins, Sir R Atkins,
Baxter, Beavers, Berry, C Birch, Bowen, Bridge, Cartridge, Catterall, Collinson, Cropper,
E Ellison, P Ellison, Fail, Fairbanks, Gerrard, George, Henderson, Holden, Ibison,
Ingham, Le Marinel, Leech, Longton, McKay, Minto, Moon, Orme, O'Neill, Raynor,
Robinson, Smith, Stirzaker, Swales, S Turner, A Vincent, Matthew Vincent, M Vincent,
D Walmsley, L Walmsley, Webster and Williams
Apologies: None.
Officers present:
Garry Payne, Chief Executive
Mark Billington, Corporate Director Environment
Marianne Hesketh, Corporate Director Communities
Clare James, Corporate Director Resources and Section 151 Officer
Peter Foulsham, Democratic Services and Scrutiny Manager
Marianne Unwin, Democratic Services Officer

39

Confirmation of minutes
Comment was made that Minute 34 (Members’ Allowances Scheme)
recorded that the recommendations had been agreed by 35 votes to 9. It was
accepted that it was a proposal by Councillor Sir R Atkins that had been
supported by 35 votes to 9. The reference to the recommendations being
accepted by 35 votes to 9 was incorrect, and the decision for Minute 34
should more accurately read:
“It was agreed by a majority
(i)

That, in line with the formula applied since 2012 and endorsed
last year, the Basic Allowance paid to each Councillor be
increased by 2.75%, from £4,347 per annum, to £4,467 with

Page 5

(ii)

effect from 2 May 2021, and
That no other changes be made to the Scheme for 2021/22.”

It was proposed by Councillor Henderson and seconded by Councillor Alan
Vincent that the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 11 March 2021
be approved as an accurate record, subject to the above and another
amendment to minute 34, Councillor Fairbanks having seconded a further
amendment, which had been proposed by Councillor O’Neill, and not
Councillor George as originally recorded (by 39 votes to 8, with 1 abstention).
40

Declarations of Interest
None.

41

Announcements
The Chief Executive, Garry Payne, informed councillors that both the
Conservative and Labour Associations in Wyre had agreed that they would
not use tellers at the forthcoming elections in order to reduce the risk of
transmitting the COVID-19 virus.

42

Public questions or statements
None received.

43

Questions "On Notice" from councillors
None received.

44

Treasury Management Policy and Annual Investment Strategy, Minimum
Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Capital Strategy 2021/22
Councillor Alan Vincent, Resources Portfolio Holder and Clare James,
Corporate Director Resources and S151 Officer submitted a report.
It was proposed by Councillor Alan Vincent, seconded by Councillor
Henderson and agreed, unanimously, that the Treasury Management Policy
and Annual Investment Strategy, MRP Policy Statement and Capital Strategy
for 2021/22 be approved.

45

Appointment of Monitoring Officer
Councillor David Henderson, Leader of the Council and Garry Payne, Chief
Executive, submitted a report.
Councillor Henderson paid tribute to Liesl Hadgraft, Head of Business
Support, who was retiring after 34 years’ service to Wyre, having also been
the Monitoring Officer since 1 April 2016.
It was proposed by Councillor Henderson, seconded by Councillor Alan
Vincent and agreed, unanimously, that the Legal Services Manager, Mary

Page 6

Grimshaw, be appointed to role of Monitoring Officer from 1 June 2021.
46

Constitution amendments
Councillor David Henderson, Leader of the Council and Garry Payne, Chief
Executive submitted a report.
An amendment was proposed by Councillor Fail and seconded by Councillor
Beavers, in two parts:
(i) that paragraph 9.3 of the Local Code of Good Practice for Councillors
and Officers involved in the Planning Process be amended to refer
to “a Ward councillor” rather than “the Ward councillor”, and
(ii) that the following sentence in paragraph 9.5 be deleted: “Only one
Parish or Town Councillor, one adjoining Ward Councillor (if they
called in the application) and the County Councillor, may speak”.
Following a debate the proposed amendment was lost by 11 votes to 34.
During the debate the meeting was suspended for four minutes while a
disturbance outside the Civic Centre was dealt with.
It was proposed by Councillor Henderson, seconded by Councillor Alan
Vincent and agreed, by 37 votes to 9, that the recommendations in the report
be accepted.

47

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report
Councillor John Ibison, Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee,
submitted a report.
The report was noted.

48

Notices of Motion
None.

The meeting started at 7pm and finished at 7:43pm.

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8

Public Document Pack

Council Minutes
The minutes of the Council meeting held on Thursday 13 May 2021 at the Council
Chamber, Civic Centre, Poulton-le-Fylde.

Councillors present:
The Mayor, Councillor Andrea Kay and the Deputy Mayor, Councillor Howard Ballard
Councillors Sir R Atkins, Beavers, Berry, Bowen, Cartridge, Collinson, P Ellison,
Fairbanks, Henderson, Ibison, Le Marinel, Minto, Moon, Orme, Raynor, Robinson, Smith,
Stirzaker, A Vincent and M Vincent
Officers present:
Garry Payne, Chief Executive
Peter Foulsham, Democratic Services and Scrutiny Manager
Daphne Courtenage, Assistant Democratic Services Officer
No members of the public or press attended the meeting.

1

Attendance at this meeting - impact of pandemic
The Mayor reminded those present that as a result of the restrictions on
indoor gatherings currently being imposed as a result of the COVID-19
pandemic, the capacity of the Council Chamber was limited.
As a
consequence, a number of councillors had been unable to attend the meeting,
for which they should not be penalised, and this would be reflected in the
minutes.

2

Declarations of Interest
None.

3

Announcements
None.

4

Mental Health Champion
Councillor David Henderson, Leader of the Council, submitted a report to

Page 9

establish the role of Mental Health Champion. He referred to the particular
relevance of establishing the role during Mental Health Awareness Week and
commented that Councillor Julie Robinson was particularly well qualified for
such a role. He referred, specifically, to her long-standiung membership of
Lancashire County Council’s Joint Health Scrurtiny Committee and interest in
related areas. .
It was proposed by Councillor Henderson, seconded by Councillor Alan
Vincent and agreed unanimously that Councillor Julie Robinson be appointed
to the role of Mental Health Champion until the elections in May 2023.
Councillor Robinson thanked the Mayor, the Leader and councillors for her
appointment. She was pleased to be the first Mental Health Champion in the
borough and underlined the importance of the Council shaping changes to
mental health policy and so improving the mental health of the community, in
which she looked forward to playing a key part.
5

Appointments to Committees, Panels and Groups 2021/22
Councillor David Henderson, Leader of the Council and Garry Payne, Chief
Executive, submitted a report to enable Members to be appointed to the
Council’s Committees and other Panels and Groups.
It was proposed by Councillor Henderson, seconded by Councillor Alan
Vincent and agreed, unanimously, that all the current Committees, Panels
and Groups be reappointed for 2021/22 with the same number of places on
each and with the same membership as in 2020/21 except:
(a) That Councillor Cropper be appointed to the Licensing Committee in
place of Councillor Sir Robert Atkins;
(b) That Councillors Sir Robert Atkins and le Marinel be appointed to the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee in place of Councillors Cropper and
C Birch respectively;
(c) That Councillors A Turner and Webster be appointed to the
Employment and Appeals Committee in place of Councillors R Amos
and Le Marinel respectively;
(d) That Councillor A Turner be appointed to the Audit Committee in place
of Councillor Holden;
(e) That Councillor Orme be appointed to the Councillor Development
Group in place of Councillor Collinson.
And that Councillor Berry and Councillor le Marinel be re-appointed as the
Wyre Council representatives on the Police and Crime Panel for Lancashire
for 2021/22.

The meeting started at 7.00 pm and finished at 7.06 pm.

Page 10

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12

Agenda Item 4

Report of:

Meeting

Date

Councillor David Henderson,
Leader of the Council and
Garry Payne, Chief Executive

Council

8 July 2021

Cabinet membership and responsibilities
1.

Purpose of report
1.1

2.

Outcomes
2.1

3.

To inform the Council of changes to the membership of the Cabinet and
to the allocation of responsibilities to Portfolio Holders.

Effective executive decision making and the delivery of Council priorities.

Recommendations
3.1

That the appointment of Cllr Collinson to the Cabinet and the following
revised allocation of responsibilities within the Cabinet, with effect from 1
June 2021, be noted:
Cllr Michael Vincent - Resources Portfolio Holder and Deputy Leader
Cllr Collinson – Planning Policy and Economic Development Portfolio
Holder.

3.2

4.

That the list of the Responsibilities for Executive Functions, in Part 3.03
of the Constitution, be amended accordingly.

Background
4.1

Arrangements for the composition, roles and responsibilities of the
Cabinet are set out in Article 6 of the Council’s constitution. Paragraph
6.02 of Article 6 specifies that the Cabinet will comprise the Leader and at
least 5 other councillors appointed by the Leader (the statutory maximum
is 10). Paragraph 6.02 also states that the Leader will appoint a Deputy
Leader and paragraph 6.05 states that the Leader will maintain a list (set
out in Part 3 of the Constitution) detailing the particular responsibilities of
each Cabinet Member. The Leader is free to choose how he divides
those responsibilities between his Cabinet members.

Page 13

5.

Key issues and proposals
5.1

Councillor Alan Vincent has requested to stand down from the Cabinet
with immediate effect as a result of additional responsibilities following his
appointment as the Deputy Leader of Lancashire County Council.

5.2

Councillor David Henderson, Leader of the Council, has reshuffled some
of the portfolio holder responsibilities as set out in paragraph 3.1. This
includes moving Councillor Michael Vincent to the Resources Portfolio.
Councillor Michael Vincent will also become the Deputy Leader of the
Council. Councillor Alice Collinson has accepted the Leader’s invitation to
join the Cabinet as the renamed Planning Policy and Economic
Development Portfolio Holder.
Financial and legal implications

Finance
Legal

There are no additional financial implications associated
with this report.
The proposed appointments are in accordance with the
Council’s Constitution and legal requirements
Other risks/implications: checklist

If there are significant implications arising from this report on any issues marked with
a  below, the report author will have consulted with the appropriate specialist
officers on those implications and addressed them in the body of the report. There
are no significant implications arising directly from this report, for those issues
marked with a x.
/x

risks/implications

/x

community safety

x

asset management

x

equality and diversity

x

climate change

x

sustainability

x

ICT

x

health and safety

x

data protection

x

risks/implications

Processing Personal Data
In addition to considering data protection along with the other risks/ implications, the
report author will need to decide if a ‘privacy impact assessment (PIA)’ is also
required. If the decision(s) recommended in this report will result in the collection and
processing of personal data for the first time (i.e. purchase of a new system, a new
working arrangement with a third party) a PIA will need to have been completed and
signed off by Data Protection Officer before the decision is taken in compliance with
the Data Protection Act 2018.

Page 14

report author

telephone no.

email

Peter Foulsham

01253 887606

peter.foulsham@wyre.gov.uk

date
11 June
2021

List of background papers:
name of document

date

where available for inspection

None

Appendices
None
Dems/council/0807pf4

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8a

Report of:

To:

Date

Councillor David Henderson,
Leader of the Council

Council

8 July 2021

Executive Report: Leader of the Council
1.

Purpose of report
1.1

2.

To inform Council of progress on key objectives and the current position
on a number of issues, as set out below.

Lancashire District Leaders
2.1

On 10 March and 9 June I attended virtual meetings of the Lancashire
District Leaders.

2.2

At Lancashire District Leaders meeting in March we discussed the
following:

2.3

The COVID vaccination programme for Lancashire and South Cumbria
is ahead of target and Lancashire has an ambitious expectation to
vaccinate all adults by mid-May. Updates from the Government
Department of Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS)
regarding business support grants were also discussed.

2.4

It was agreed that District Leaders would request a plan for economic
regeneration and recovery and that it should be considered by the
Ministerial Task Force and Economic Development Theme Group
chaired by Cllr Matthew Brown (Leader Preston Council). For Members’
information our Chief Executive Garry Payne chairs the Lancashire
Economic Development Directors Group and he attends and reports into
the Economic Development Theme Group.

2.5

In addition in March we discussed the Contain Outbreak Management
Fund, the Greater Lancashire Plan and the Lancashire City of Culture
Bid.

2.6

At the meeting in June the first item of business was appointments to
various bodies/partnerships and Cllr Alice Collinson was appointed to
the Lancashire Best Kept Village Competition and Cllr Roger Berry to
the Lancashire Partnership Against Crime.

2.7

Following our meeting in March we continued to discuss the importance
of economic recovery for our businesses and residents in Lancashire.
Economic recovery is the main focus of the Ministerial Task
Page
17 Group and such matters are
Force/Economic Development
Theme

interlinked with the development of the Greater Lancashire Plan which is
now at an advanced stage and once finalised I will bring a separate
report to full Council.
3.

Lancashire Leaders
3.1

4.

5.

Owing to the pandemic and the holding of the Lancashire County
Council (LCC) elections, Lancashire Leaders have not met for some
time but I would like to take this opportunity to congratulate those
candidates who were successful in the recent County Elections. I have
met with the new Leader of LCC, Cllr Phillippa Williamson, and I am
looking forward to building a strong and successful working relationship
with both the Leader and Deputy Leader of LCC, Cllr Alan Vincent.

Blackpool, Fylde and Wyre Economic Prosperity Board
4.1

The Board met on 10 June and I was elected chair for the forthcoming
year. The main purpose of the Economic Prosperity Board is that the
three Authorities on the Fylde Coast work in a formal Partnership to
deliver sustained economic growth. The Board has existed for three
years and during that time a strong working relationship has evolved for
the better benefit for businesses and communities in Blackpool, Fylde
and Wyre.

4.2

At the meeting in June we had presentations on Business Investment
Marketing by WhistleJacket, the creative agency heading up Blackpool
Makes it Work - Blackpool's inward investment marketing campaign.

4.3

In addition to progress updates on the Blackpool Airport Enterprise Zone
and Hillhouse Technology Enterprise Zone (Cllr Collinson in her
Executive Report provides a detailed update on the Hillhouse
Technology Enterprise Zone) we received a paper on the issues of
flooding and surface water management faced by the Fylde Coastal
Authorities owing to climate change.

4.4

Blackpool, Fylde, and Wyre Councils have, over a number of years,
worked in partnership to successfully deliver coastal defences and
improve bathing water quality through the Fylde Peninsular Water
Management Partnership.

4.5

The Board agreed that Heads of Service from the three Authorities work
with Lancashire County Council Officers to explore the potential for
establishing a specialist drainage team, pooling existing capacity and
securing additional resources to allow greater integration of water
management across the peninsular. This action would be delivered
through the Fylde Peninsula Water Management Partnership and the
outcome will be reported back to the Board in due course.

COVID-19 Pandemic
5.1

As I have referenced in paragraph 2.3 of my report the vaccination
programme in Lancashire is ahead of schedule but Members should be
aware that here in Wyre our vaccination delivery was reported by the
BBC at the end of June as being the highest in the Country. Prior to the
start of the vaccination programme
Page 18Senior Officers met with

representatives from the Primary Care Network to devise a vaccination
delivery plan utilising both our buildings and staff. As a result our
residents were vaccinated early in the programme and you will be well
aware that the best protection against the virus is vaccination. I would
like to take this opportunity to thank all those Officers who have assisted
and continue to assist in the vaccination programme but once again
partnership working and a ‘can do’ attitude is benefiting our residents.
6.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Review
6.1

7.

8.

Members may be aware that the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny
have undertaken a review of our Overview and Scrutiny Committee and
on 17 June my fellow Cabinet Members, Overview and Scrutiny
Committee members and Corporate Management Team and I took part
in a Workshop run by Ian Parry from the Centre for Governance and
Scrutiny. I found the workshop interesting and useful and l am confident
that the review will provide the necessary tools to further strengthen our
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

Fleetwood to Poulton-le-Fylde Rail Reinstatement
7.1

The Fleetwood Railway Line Reopening Feasibility Study has just been
completed by Lancashire County Council and partners, including
ourselves. The Strategic Outline Business Case study has considered
three rail related options; a heavy rail route, a light rail route and a
hybrid tram-train option.

7.2

In summary, the conclusion reached is that all of these options are
technically deliverable and all options would provide a transformative
step change in connectivity for Fleetwood and the wider area. However,
the three options contain some significant delivery risks and
uncertainties and these must be fully considered in the next stage.

7.3

The current study has been submitted to the Department for Transport
by Lancashire County Council for their consideration and agreement on
the next steps, which is expected to be an Outline Business Case where
delivery risks and uncertainties along with the comparative strengths of
the options can be better considered. I will keep Members updated as
this matter progresses.

Comments and Questions
8.1

In accordance with procedure rule 11.3 any member of Council will be
able to ask me a question or make a comment on the contents of my
report or on any issue, which falls within my area of responsibility. I will
respond to any such questions or comments in accordance with
Procedure Rule 11.5.

dems/council/0807 leader

Page 19

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8b

Report of:

To:

Date

Councillor Michael Vincent,
Resources Portfolio Holder
and Deputy Leader

Council

8 July 2021

Executive Report: Resources Portfolio Holder
1.

Purpose of report
1.1

2.

3.

To inform Council of progress on key objectives and the current position
on issues within the Resources Portfolio, as set out below.

Finance
2.1

The pre-audit final accounts for 2020/21 are on schedule to be signed
off by the Audit Committee at their meeting on 27 July. Post-audit sign
off is expected to be before the end of September, in line with new
deadlines introduced in response to Covid-19 and the findings from the
recent Redmond Review.

2.2

Despite the pandemic, an underspend for 2020/21 is expected to be
reported at outturn. However, it is accepted that the impact of Covid-19
on the council’s services and financial position will continue to be felt in
2021/22 and beyond and any reduction in spend will be retained to help
offset future spending pressures and projects delayed by the pandemic.

2.3

It is pleasing to report that Covid-19 Business Grants paid out exceed
£50m since the start of the pandemic. This vital support has helped to
keep businesses in Wyre viable during an unprecedented series of
national and local lockdowns. The majority of the national grant
schemes have now closed but we have retained funding for a local
discretionary grant which can be utilised until the end of March 2022
and we will continue to support local businesses through this fund.

Human Resources
3.1

Employee sickness absence figures for the year ending March 2021
were 5.03 days per full time equivalent. This is an improvement
compared to the previous year’s performance (2019/20) which was 7.88
days and is the lowest recorded within the last ten years. It is believed
that the impact of the pandemic and the increase in home working has
contributed to the reduction.

Page 21

4.

5.

6.

Procurement
4.1

The government has published a new National Procurement Policy
Statement and contracting authorities will be expected to have due
regard to its contents as part of legislation to be brought forward later
this year.

4.2

As part of the policy, contracting authorities should consider the
following social value outcomes alongside any additional local priorities
and the council will incorporate these into its Financial Regulations at
the next review:
● Creating new businesses, new jobs and new skills in the UK;
● Improving supplier diversity, innovation and resilience;
● Tackling climate change and reducing waste.

Contact Centre
5.1

The new Citizen Access Portal and council website has been launched.
The portal will allow users to set up an account and have access to
information and a range of services 24/7. Given the ongoing pandemic,
reducing the need for customers to visit council offices is vital and selfservice through the portal provides a safe, convenient and up to date
alternative.

5.2

As the reception area in the Civic Centre has been closed for much of
the last 15 months, demand online and on the telephone has increased
and the portal will help to resolve enquiries efficiently without the need
for face to face contact until restrictions are lifted.

Comments and questions
6.1

In accordance with procedure rule 11.3 any member of Council will be
able to ask me a question or make a comment on the contents of my
report or on any issue, which falls within my area of responsibility. I will
respond to any such questions or comments in accordance with
Procedure Rule 11.5.

Dems/Council/0807Resources

Page 22

Agenda Item 8c

Report of:

To:

Date

Councillor Simon Bridge,
Street Scene, Parks and
Open Spaces Portfolio
Holder

Council

8 July 2021

Executive Report: Street Scene, Parks and Open Spaces Portfolio Holder
1.

Purpose of report
1.1

2.

To inform council of progress on key objectives and the current position
on issues within the Street Scene, Parks and Open Spaces Portfolio as
set out below.

Parks and open spaces
2.1

Wyre’s parks, open spaces and coastal sites are attracting even more
visitors and users; whilst this is splendid to see, it also brings with it
challenges for the teams and our volunteers managing these sites. The
staff across all the services are doing their best to maintain and respond
to issues as well as preparing for Green Flag and ‘In Bloom’ judging at
sites across the borough during July and August.

2.2

Following the completed restoration of The Mount and lodge, work is
continuing in the Mary Hope Garden; encouraging volunteers,
schoolchildren and families to come and work with the site-based
gardener to develop a wildflower meadow and a rock garden, creating
areas for plants with sandy soils containing drought resistant plants, sun
loving plants and maritime plants.

2.3

The Artist and Scientist in Residence continue to develop the Science
and Discovery Club providing a regular series of events for families. The
residencies will animate the heritage of The Mount allowing the public to
gain a deeper understanding of the site and its role in navigation,
communication and weather recording. All information is available on
the website

2.4

Exploration of the site is being encouraged by taking part in our entry to
orienteering activity – Xplorer. Participants will investigate the site
looking for markers hidden around the site using a map to traverse
around the grounds.

2.5

We are trialling different grass cutting regimes at a number of sites with
the aim of increasing biodiversity; whilst still providing for recreational

Page 23

use on other parts of the sites. These trials will help us to plan our
machinery requirements in the future.

3.

2.6

Sadly, the usual programme of fun and exciting activities in the Great
Outdoor Activities Programme in our parks and open spaces have had
to be scaled back, but I am pleased to report that with revised working
arrangements health walks, health rides small group activity beach
cleans along with the demonstration garden club at Memorial park have
recommenced. The volunteers continue to support the team with these
activities and maintenance and conservation tasks across the borough

2.7

The Living Seas and Dunescapes Projects continue on the coast with
volunteer citizen science projects and planned invasive species removal
with the support of Natural England. To support this activity and to
enable greater coastal engagement Rossall Point Tower will be
reopened this summer subject to covid guidance.

2.8

I am pleased to be able to advise members that the team along with key
partners has taken part in the third Bioblitz; a 24 hour wildlife challenge
which aims to involve anyone from experts to complete beginners in the
goal of finding as many different species of plants and animals in a
defined area as possible. The event took place between 6 and 13 June
around the Wyre Estuary. It was scaled back compared to previous
years, to remain covid safe, but had great feedback from customers,
volunteers and experts in their respective fields.

2.9

The more serious side to the Bioblitz is the really useful information that
comes in from the volunteers informing us where the wildlife is and what
it might need to survive and to raise awareness with the local
community on the importance of this species and how to protect them.
The full data analysis has not yet taken place, but early reports indicated
over 500 observations and over 300 species identified.

Waste and recycling
3.1

In recent months Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
(DEFRA) have released the second round of consultations for three
areas in relation to the Resource and Waste Strategy (RAWS), the
proposals of all three will have a major impact on householders,
businesses, producers of packaging and the whole waste sector. For
Wyre Council, as a collection authority, it will impact the way that waste
and recycling is collected, how it is processed, and how the authority
gets paid for the provision of services and additional funding for some of
these suggested changes.

3.2

Management Board agreed for the Corporate Director Environment to
provide responses to the questions in each consultation that directly
impacts on Wyre.

3.3

The Extended Producer Responsibility for Packaging
This paper sets out far reaching proposals to overhaul the current
“producer responsibility” arrangements. It proposes that funding to meet
the costs of managing packaging wastes are transferred from central
government and local taxpayers to businesses. Local authorities will be
paid by producers for collecting and managing packaging that arises in

Page 24

household waste. The payment formula is to be determined, but what is
evident is that local authorities will have to collect all recyclable
packaging, including plastic film (e.g. bread liners, bags, tops of meat
packaging), and the payments will be driven by how efficient a collection
service is and be linked to the quality of recyclables collected. At present
it is unclear how this will evolve in two tier authority areas. Collection
services will have to meet with any minimum collection standards and it
is therefore important for our residents to continue to recycle as much as
possible and ensure they only put the right things in the recycling bins to
reduce contamination. Information regarding what is currently recyclable
is made available annually via the collection calendar and on the council’s
website.

4.

3.4

Deposit Return scheme for drinks containers - refers solely to a
deposit return scheme (for drinks containers explicitly) and not reward
and return schemes. This is a system where you pay an upfront deposit
and you must return the container to redeem and get your deposit back
from 2024. The paper suggests the government are still committed to
introducing a scheme but recognises that the Covid-19 pandemic has
disrupted the economy and society in unimaginable ways; the
consultation explores the appetite for a scheme in a post covid context.

3.5

Consistency in collections
This affects Wyre as a collection authority the greatest, with the
proposed intention to require Local Authorities to provide weekly food
waste collections, a minimum frequency on other material collections,
the type of materials to be collected, and possibly the provision of free
garden waste collections. Alongside this, consideration is being given
for the development of statutory guidance on new “minimum service
standards for rubbish and recycling collections, subject to an
assessment of affordability and value for money.

3.6

DEFRA plans to provide final details for each reform later this year.

3.7

Waste arising across all waste streams remain higher than the same
period in previous years, but more positively, general waste is declining
which is possibly as a result of more people returning to work. The
tonnage of glass, cans and plastic bottles, continues to show
approximately a 30% increase; this is a positive change that has
occurred since the introduction of the new red bin.

3.8

Over the last 10 months through support from LCC and in partnership
with an external marketing agency there has been a targeted digital and
social media campaign #letstalkrubbish; the aim to increase recycling
rates, reduce contamination and the overall waste arising. The
engagement from customers and sharing of these posts illustrates that
this has been positively received and is hopefully contributing to the
increase in recycling being collected.

Street Scene
4.1

The independent inspection of the public toilets still took place last year,
and I’m pleased to report that our facilities managed in partnership with
Danfo (UK), scored highly once again in the Loo of the Year Awards;

Page 25

with fifteen sites getting gold and a further five receiving platinum award
recognition.

5.

4.2

The pilot enforcement quarterly returns from August 2019 to April 2021,
can been seen in Appendix 1. Enforcement activities (including
prosecutions) were suspended during lockdown, with a phased
reintroduction of officers patrolling the high streets and public open
spaces recommencing in late 2020.

4.3

The Cleaner Greener Officer continues to undertake engagement
activities. The range from, dog fouling and cigarette butt awareness
campaigns with community and school groups and more recently they
supported the National Spring Clean with covid secure litter picking
events held across the borough. They also provide support to other
groups wishing to undertake their own events. A big thank you to all
that took part and made a difference in their local community, a total of
205 volunteers collected in excess of 100 bags of litter.

Comments and questions
5.1

In accordance with procedure rule 11.3 any member of council will be
able to ask me a question or make a comment on the contents of my
report or on any issue, which falls within my area of responsibility. I will
respond to any such questions or comments in accordance with
procedure rule 11.5.

List of Appendices
Appendix 1: Pilot Enforcement Project with specialist Operator Year 2

Dems/council/0807 street scene/v2

Page 26

Appendix 1: Pilot Enforcement Project with specialist Operator Year 2
Qtr 4 (Aug-Oct):19


Total Fixed Penalty Notices (FPN) issued: 1,462
o 1,404 for depositing litter.
o 58 for Public Space Protection Order dog offences (11 of which for
fouling).




6 Cancelled.
111 Formal Representations received, with 91 declined and 20 accepted.



Income (Council) for this quarter: £14,026.13

Over the first 4 quarters, 705 cases have progressed to prosecution stage; of which :
 Guilty in absence = 606
 Guilty by post = 32
 Not guilty (post) = 2
 Awaiting case result = 48
 10 paid (withdrawn)
 7 withdrawn by Council
FPN issued by area Qtr 4:

Area
Stalmine
Fleetwood
Garstang
Poulton-le-Fylde & Carleton
Preesall & Knott End
Thornton-Cleveleys
Forton
St Michaels on Wyre
Dolphinholme

total Qtr 4
1
651
35
69
7
584
106
2
1
1,456*
*less the 6
cancelled

%
<1
45
2
5
<1
40
7
<1
<1

total Qtr 4
404
680
531
125
3

%
22
37
29
7
<1

Officer Hours Patrolled by
Area Qtr 4
Poulton-le-Fylde & Carleton
Thornton & Cleveleys
Fleetwood
Garstang
Hambleton

Page 27

Appendix 1: Pilot Enforcement Project with specialist Operator Year 2
Preesall & Knott End
Pilling
Winmarleigh
Out Rawcliffe
Great Eccleston
St Michael's on Wyre
Churchtown
Nateby
Inskip
Forton
Dolphinholme
Scorton
Calder Vale, Bleasdale,
Bonds, Bowgreave,Catterall
Claughton
Bilsborrow

43
6
0
0
3
4
5
9
0
21
<1
2

2
<1
<1
<1
<1
<1
<1
<1
<1
1
<1
<1

7

<1

0
3
1,846

<1
<1

Page 28

Appendix 1: Pilot Enforcement Project with specialist Operator Year 2
Pilot Enforcement Project with specialist Operator Year 2
Qtr 1 (November 19 – end of Jan 20):


Total Fixed Penalty Notices (FPN) issued: 638
o 619 for depositing litter.
o 19 for Public Space Protection Order dog offences.





9 Cancelled.
68 Formal Representations seeking a review of FPNs issued were received,
with 40 rejected and 28 accepted.
Number of FPNs paid (at time of report): 451



Income to the council: £5,797.50

No FPN
Issued

Area
Bilsborrow
Bowgreave, Catterall
Churchtown
Thornton Cleveleys
Fleetwood
Garstang
Forton
Great Eccleston
Hambleton
Poulton-le-Fylde & Carleton
St Michaels-on-Wyre
Total:
*Less 9 cancelled
Area
Bilsborrow
Calder Vale, Bleasdale,
Bonds, Bowgreave,
Catterall
Churchtown
Claughton
Dolphinholme
Fleetwood
Forton
Garstang

1
2
1
369
184
44
4
5
1
14
4
629*

Patrolling
Hours
24
51

3
2
8
586
3
321

Page 29

%
<1
<1
<1
59
29
7
1
1
<1
2
1

%
1
2

<1
<1
<1
24
<1
13

Appendix 1: Pilot Enforcement Project with specialist Operator Year 2
Great Eccleston
Hambleton
Inskip
Poulton-le-Fylde & Carleton
Preesall & Knott End
Scorton
St Michaels on Wyre
Thornton – Cleveleys
Winmarleigh
Total Hours

8
9
1
581
120
3
3
697
4
2,424

<1
<1
<1
24
5
<1
<1
29
<1

Qtr 2 (Feb – April 20):


Total Fixed Penalty Notices (FPN) issued: 378
o 345 for depositing litter.
o 33 for Public Space Protection Order dog offences.





8 Cancelled.
58 Formal Representations seeking a review of FPNs issued were received,
with 38 rejected and 20 accepted.
To date 48 cases have progressed to Court through the single Justice
System:
o Awaiting results of 31 cases.
o Paid (Withdrawn) is 2 cases



Income to the council from FPN this period: £3,305.63
Area
Catterall
Thornton –Cleveleys
Fleetwood
Garstang
Great Eccleston
Knott End, Preesall & Stalmine
Poulton-le-Fylde & Carleton
Total issued

No FPN
Issued
15
124
196
20
1
3
19
378
Patrolling
Hours
13

Area
Bilsborrow
Calder Vale, Bleasdale, Bonds, Bowgreave,
Catterall
Churchtown

Page 30

%
4
33
52
5
0
1
5

%
1

42

2

8

<1

Appendix 1: Pilot Enforcement Project with specialist Operator Year 2
Claughton
Dolphinholme
Fleetwood
Forton
Garstang
Great Eccleston
Hambleton
Inskip
Nateby
Out Rawcliffe
Pilling
Poulton-le-Fylde & Carleton
Preesall & Knott End
Scorton
St Michaels on Wyre
Thornton – Cleveleys
Winmarleigh
Total

2
19
486
4
264
14
17
3
2
1
9
387
92
4
21
743
5
2,136

<1
1
23
<1
12
1
1
<1
<1
<1
<1
18
4
<1
1
35
<1

Qtr 3 (May – July 20):


Total Fixed Penalty Notices (FPN) issued: 174
o 145 for depositing litter.
o 29 for Public Space Protection Order dog offences (2 of which for
fouling).




5 Cancelled.
32 Formal Representations received, with 20 declined and 12 accepted.



Income for this quarter: £1,007.50
No FPN
Issued
75
27
1
7
64
174

Area
Fleetwood
Garstang
Hambleton
Poulton-le-Fylde
Thornton-Cleveleys
Total

Page 31

%
43
16
1
4
37

Appendix 1: Pilot Enforcement Project with specialist Operator Year 2
Patrolling
Hours
89
40
180
11
3
176
3
502

Area
Fleetwood
Garstang
Poulton-le-Fylde & Carleton
Preesall Ward
Scorton
Thornton Cleveleys
Winmarleigh
Total

%
18
8
36
2
1
35
1

Quarter 4: Total Fixed Penalty Notices issued:
1st Aug 2020 to 31st October 2020
Fixed Penalty Notices (FPN)issued
Depositing Litter
Public Space Protection Order

FPN Cancelled
Representations
Of which declined
Of which accepted

Further description

Dog offences
including (6 for
fouling)
Test ticket (system)

of paid FPN’s

Income for this quarter:

Totals
369
343
25

1
47
30
17
£2,565.00

Quarter 4: Fixed Penalty Notices Issued – breakdown by area:
1st Aug 2020 to 31st October 2020
Area
Fleetwood
Garstang
Poulton-le-Fylde & Carleton
Thornton-Cleveleys

Patrolling Hours
225
8
8
127
*368
NB *less the 1
cancelled

Percentage
61%
2%
2%
35%

Quarter 4: Prosecutions:
1st Aug 2020 to 31st October 2020
Total
Progressed to Prosecution
NB Nothing further to report in this field due to zero prosecutions, and no
withdrawals from Local Authority to report.

Page 32

0

Appendix 1: Pilot Enforcement Project with specialist Operator Year 2

Quarter 4: Patrolled Hours by Ward:
1st Aug 2020 to 31st October 2020
Carleton
Cleveleys Park
Garstang
Great Eccleston
Jubilee
Marsh Mill
Mount
Park
Pharos Ward
Pheasants Wood
Pilling
Preesall Ward
Rossall
Stanah
Tithebarn
Victoria & Norcross
Warren Ward
Wyresdale
Total:

Total

Percentage

4 mins
35 hr 19
7 hr 11
36 mins
317 hr 38
15 hr 45
20 hr 28
10 mins
23 hr 24
8 mins
0 mins
4 hr 11
34 hr 27
22 hr 53
45 mins
43 mins
46 hr 3
2 hr 40
532 hr 25 mins

0.01%
6.63%
1.35%
0.11%
59.66%
2.96%
3.84%
0.03%
4.40%
0.03%
0.00%
0.79%
6.47%
4.30%
0.14%
0.13%
8.65%
0.50%

Page 33

Appendix 1: Pilot Enforcement Project with specialist Operator Year 2
Quarter 1: Total Fixed Penalty Notices issued:
1st November 2020 to 31st January
2021
Fixed Penalty Notices (FPN)issued
Depositing Litter
Public Space Protection Order

Further description

Totals
97
97
0

Including Dog
offences

FPN Cancelled
Representations
Of which declined
Of which accepted

0
19
13
6
of paid FPN’s

Income for this quarter:

£915.00

Quarter 1: Fixed Penalty Notices issued – breakdown by area:
1st November 2020 to 31st January
2021
Area
Fleetwood
Knott End
Poulton-le-Fylde
Thornton-Cleveleys
Total

Total

Percentage
73
1
2
21
97

75%
1%
2%
22%

Quarter 1: Prosecutions:
1st November 2020 to 31st January
Total
2021
Progressed to Prosecution
NB Nothing further to report in this field due to zero prosecutions, and no
withdrawals from Local Authority to report.

0

Quarter 1: Patrolled hours by Ward
1st November 2020 to 31st January
2021
Ward
Carleton
Cleveleys Park
Great Eccleston
Jubilee

Patrolling Hours
4 mins
8 hr 33
24 hr 50
63 hr 40

Page 34

Percentage
0.05%
5.92%
17.18%
44.05%

Appendix 1: Pilot Enforcement Project with specialist Operator Year 2
Cont’d
1st November 2020 to 31st January
2021
Ward
Marsh Mill
Mount
Park
Pharos Ward
Pheasants Wood
Preesall Ward
Rossall
Stanah
Tithebarn
Victoria & Norcross
Warren Ward
Total:

Patrolling Hours
1 hr 26
4 hr 24
1 hr 40
20 hr 32
34 mins
2 hr 15
38 mins
1 hr 24
2 hr 6
3 hr 33
8 hr 53
144 hr 32

Page 35

Percentage
0.99%
3.04%
1.15%
14.21%
0.39%
1.56%
0.44%
0.97%
1.45%
2.46%
6.15%

Appendix 1: Pilot Enforcement Project with specialist Operator Year 2
Quarter 2: Total Fixed Penalty Notices issued:
1st February 2021 to 30th April 2021
Fixed Penalty Notices (FPN)issued
Depositing Litter
Public Space Protection Order
FPN Cancelled
Representations
Of which declined
Of which accepted

Further description

Income for this quarter

of paid FPN’s

Totals
263
254
5
4
58
38
20

Dog offences

£1,618.75

Quarter 2: Fixed Penalty Notices Issued – breakdown by area:
1st February 2021 to 30th April 2021
Area
Catterall
Fleetwood
Forton
Garstang
Great Eccleston
Poulton-le-Fylde
St. Michaels-on-Wyre
Thornton- Cleveleys
NB * 4 cancelled - 3 test tickets/1 void
made in error

Total

Percentage
5
95
1
55
3
12
1
87

2%
37%
<1%
21%
1%
5%
<1%
34%

259

Quarter 2: Prosecutions:
1st February 2021 to 30th April 2021
Progressed to Prosecution - pending
Paid/withdrawn

Total
Single Justice system
1 case refunded

Quarter 2: Patrolled hours by Ward:
1st February 2021 to 30th April 2021
Ward
Carleton
Cleveleys Park
Garstang
Great Eccleston
Jubilee

Patrolling Hours
1 hr 5
4 hr 13
49 hrs 18
114hrs 59
97 hrs 35

Page 36

Percentage
0.20%
0.77%
8.98%
20.93%
17.77%

64

Appendix 1: Pilot Enforcement Project with specialist Operator Year 2
Cont’d
1st February 2021 to 30th April 2021
Ward
Marsh Mill
Mount
Park
Pharos Ward
Pheasants Wood
Pilling
Preesall Ward
Rossall
Stanah
Tithebarn
Victoria & Norcross
Warren Ward
Wyresdale
Total:

Patrolling Hours
40 hrs 41
17 hrs 22
19 hrs 4
23 hrs 24
8hrs 55
29 mins
35 mins
9hrs 30
10 hrs 36
44 hrs 37
38 hrs 15
25hrs 54
8 hrs 56
549hrs 18 mins

Dems/council/0807 street scene/v2

Page 37

Percentage
7.41%
3.16%
3.47%
4.40%
1.62%
0.09%
0.11%
1.73%
1.93%
8.12%
6.96%
4.72%
1.63%

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8d

Report of:

To:

Date

Councillor Alice Collinson
Planning Policy and
Economic Development
Portfolio Holder

Council

8 July 2021

Executive Report: Planning Policy and Economic Development Portfolio Holder
1.

Purpose of report
1.1

2.

Local Plan Partial Review
2.1

3.

To inform Council of progress on key objectives and the current position
on issues within the Planning Policy and Economic Development
Portfolio, as set out below.

Work continues on a number of technical documents related to the partial
review of the Wyre Local Plan 2031. Counsel views were sought on 28
May 2021 on the broad approach of placing a heavy reliance on the use
of the Government’s Standard Method, whilst also taking account of
recent developments in the Fylde Local Plan Partial Review. Following
the advice given, the preparation of Regulation 19 documents has
commenced, Planning Policy Working Group have been updated and
soon two documents will be updated to make ready for the next stage in
the partial review; The Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) and
The Local Development Scheme (LDS). Current evidence suggests that
submission of the Partial Review for Examination in early 2022 will be
achievable; in full accordance with the requirements of Policy LPR1 of the
Wyre Local Plan 2031.

Masterplanning
3.1

Cockerham Road (SA1/14) Garstang – Work on masterplanning has
recently been restarted given a greater appetite for development amongst
the landowners. Officers facilitated a landowners group meeting where
broad agreement was achieved on mix of land uses. Detailed work will
now begin with LCC (as both Local Education Authority and Highways
Authority) the progress of which is likely to be dependent upon a
commercial agreement between all the landowners to ‘equalise’ land
values across the entire allocation. Although other matters exist, the most
pertinent at present is the requirement of the allocation to make land
available for a new primary school. The Masterplan must ensure that this
is achievable and that any development would not prejudice the provision
of land for and deliverability of a new primary school.

Page 39

3.2

4.

Project Neptune
4.1

5.

A Levelling Up Fund (LUF) bid was submitted on Friday 18 June. This
includes a total ask of just under £9m from Government to support the
delivery of three projects. The first project will see the creation of
additional floorspace at Fleetwood Market, the second will result in a
significant improvement to the buildings of Fleetwood Museum and the
third project will support a housing led regeneration of the port of
Fleetwood. A decision from Government is expected later in the year with
projects to be completed by March 2024 if the bid is successful.

Heritage Action Zone
6.1

7.

Officers from across the council continue to work in collaboration with
Associated British Ports (ABP) to deliver an approximate £9m Getting
Building Fund project for regeneration works at Fleetwood Docks. Two
planning permissions have been granted for the project and work will
commence on site in June. The development is led by ABP and includes
significant engineering works, demolitions and construction of new
commercial units for fish and food processing. Once ABP complete the
new commercial units the council will take ownership of the new facility.
Work on lease agreements with potential tenants is ongoing with the
development anticipated to be fully let (over 40,000 sq ft). The project will
be completed in various stages with occupation of the new build
commercial units likely to take place before March 2022.

Levelling Up Fund application
5.1

6.

Lambs Road/Raikes Road (SA1/2) Thornton – Masterplan is now in its
final draft having been considered by the Planning Policy Working Group
(PPWG) and is to be recommended for approval/adoption at Cabinet at its
14 July meeting.

Officers continue to develop projects at a number of properties in the town
centre. Detailed survey work has been undertaken at the former ‘Store 21’
building to determine the building condition and the extent of eligible
works. Engagement with the property owners about their ambitions and
ability to match fund those ambitions is ongoing.

Hillhouse Enterprise Zone (EZ)
7.1

Monthly Hillhouse Enterprise Zone meetings have been reconvened.
Board members consist of Wyre Council and Blackpool Council,
businesses currently located on the site such as Victrex, Addison Plc and
AGCE, along with landowners NPL.

7.2

Finalisation of the implementation and delivery plan is being progressed
and amended to reflect both the closure of the Vinnolit facility and the loss
of the proposed large scale waste to energy plant. They will include the
progression of proposals by NPL Estates for an initial phase of
speculative development totalling 6,100m2 which would in part, assist the
decanting of existing businesses from the old international business
centre releasing that site for redevelopment.

Page 40

7.3

8.

Re-opening High Streets Safely Fund
8.1

9.

NPL, have secured funding £630,000 (with additional match from the
council and NPL totalling £63,000 each) from the Getting Building Fund
towards the costs of essential infrastructure upgrades to enable the new
speculative development to progress. They are now preparing detailed
planning applications for the development which should be submitted to
the council before the end of July, together with a planning application to
relocate the existing gatehouse. The project requires some urgent
upgrading and repair to ageing enabling infrastructure, including the site
access road, upgrade of utilities, and an extension and repair to
Hillhouse’s water ring main and electricity supply mains.

The council was awarded £99,180 from this programme. We have
worked in partnership with Town Boards and Town Councils to determine
how the monies could be best utilised to address areas of concern within
the Town Centres located within the Borough during the Covid Pandemic.
Interventions have included safety messaging, road closures, the
provision of hand sanitising units. Digital Training support to help
businesses to continue to operate during closure and sell services and
products to consumers, along with a footfall counting solution for each of
the 4 Town Centres have also been provided.

Welcome Back Fund
9.1

The council has been awarded £199,180 to deliver interventions which
encourage the use of Town Centres and public spaces. This programme
went live on the 1 June 2021. An internal officer working group has been
formed and is led by the Corporate Director Communities. An Action Plan
has been produced on how monies will be used within each of the four
main Town Centres. The proposed Action Plan has been shared with
Town Centre Partnership Boards.

9.2

The Action Plan was submitted to MHCLG on 30 May and we are
awaiting feedback from our proposed interventions. Once final sign off is
received the Re-opening The High Streets Safely Fund Contract will be
amended to reflect the additional award of £199,180 from the Welcome
Back Fund.

10. Comments and questions
10.1 In accordance with procedure rule 11.3 any member of Council will be
able to ask me a question or make a comment on the contents of my
report or on any issue, which falls within my area of responsibility. I will
respond to any such questions or comments in accordance with
Procedure Rule 11.5.

Dems/council/0807 planning

Page 41

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8e

Report of:

To:

Date

Councillor Roger Berry,
Neighbourhood Services
and Community Safety
Portfolio Holder

Council

8 July 2021

Executive Report: Neighbourhood Services and Community Safety Portfolio
Holder
1.

Purpose of report
1.1

2.

To inform council of progress on key objectives and the current position
on issues within the Neighbourhood Services and Community Safety
Portfolio as set out below.

Housing
2.1

Funding to Support Homelessness Prevention
I am pleased to report that earlier this year we were successful with a
bid for funding from The Ministry for Housing Communities and Local
Government (MHCLG) under the Cold Weather Fund with a view to
assisting rough sleepers and anyone else in need of accommodation
during the winter period. The bid was linked to the Severe Weather
Emergency Protocol (SWEP) which kicks in when the temperature
drops to zero degrees or below for three consecutive nights. The
additional £6,000 funding helped to support this work.

2.2

Emergency accommodation provision is vital to protecting vulnerable
people during the most severe weather. We also used this funding to
support rough sleepers into longer-term support and to ensure two beds
were available for between January and April for anyone presenting as
homeless testing positive for Covid.

2.3

We also successfully bid for £5,000 as part of the Protect Plus Fund
from MHCLG. This funding opportunity was launched in January as
additional support to keep rough sleepers off the street during the
pandemic. The funding secured five units of self-contained
accommodation between January and April and enabled fifteen rough
sleepers to be accommodated and provide them with the necessary
support for them to be able to move on to secure accommodation.

2.4

We were awarded over £31,000 from MHCLG to enable us to support
victims of domestic abuse up to the end of March 2022. Working
together with Fylde Council we are funding Fylde Coast Women’s Aid to
provide a support worker and awareness training across the two
boroughs.

Page 43

3.

2.5

We received over £70,000 as part of a new scheme from MHCLG to
support ex-offenders into their own private rented sector tenancies.
Again we will be working in partnership with Fylde Council to provide
rent in advance, rent bonds, white goods/essential items and tenancy
training to ex-offenders, as well as working with Human Kind to provide
necessary support.

2.6

In addition as part of the ongoing Rough Sleeper Initiative (Year 4). We
have been awarded over £40,000 to provide rent in advance/rent bonds
for rough sleepers, as well as providing two units of accommodation
under the Housing First model and a Housing First Engagement Officer.
The Housing First model prioritises getting people quickly into stable
homes. From this point, any other support needs they might have –
such as interventions to address alcohol and drug dependency, physical
and/or mental health problems – are addressed through coordinated
and intensive support. The model is specifically tailored for homeless
people with complex and multiple needs.

Disabled Facilities Grants
3.1

4.

The delivery of Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG) has been significantly
affected during the Pandemic. Many clients are in the clinically
extremely vulnerable group and so works had to be paused in many
cases. Updated risk assessments and safe systems of work were
implemented and became of even greater importance than normal to
ensure adaptations could start to be delivered as soon as it was
possible. Despite the setbacks owing to covid we still completed 163
DFGs during 20/21 together with 473 minor adaptations. The service is
in a strong position to make up lost ground this financial year.

Wyre Beach Management Scheme
4.1

Phase 1 - Rock armour protection to toe of Rossall South seawall.
Conditional planning approval was granted 3 June 2021. Owing to
condition 8 which sets limits on noise during construction a noise
consultant has been appointed to provide a report on the works
proposals and mitigation measures to reduce noise during the works.
An application has been submitted to the Marine Management
Organisation (MMO) for a licence to undertake the works.
A number of service diversions are required to facilitate the construction
of a haul road between Jubilee Gardens and the beach access ramp
adjacent to Café Cove. The administration for these, such as
acceptance forms, invoicing and payment has now been completed
allowing the work to progress.
The current programme predicts work starting on site 6 September 2021
with the initial site compound and enabling works through to starting the
permanent works 11 February 2022 with completion 7 July 2022.

Page 44

4.2

Phase 2 - Installation of new rock beach groynes from Kingsway
Cleveleys to Model Yacht Lake Fleetwood.
Jacobs are progressing the Environmental Impact Assessment which
will support the Planning and MMO licence application.
Last month the Planning Policy and Economic Development Portfolio
Holder approved a report to sign up to the government’s Coastal
Concordat and this allows coastal authorities to streamline the
planning/MMO process.

4.3

Flood Forum

The Flood Forum has continued to meet remotely during the pandemic
via the Teams app. The last meeting was on 10 June.
The council has continued to work with partner agencies (Lancashire
County Council, the Environment Agency, United Utilities and the Wyre
Rivers Trust) and local Flood Action Groups to consider and resolve
flooding issues in the borough.
Extensive works have been undertaken or are due to commence in
Thornton, Hambleton, Churchtown and Preesall to reduce the impact of
flooding on local communities.
5.

Community Safety
5.1

During 2020 the violence reduction network produced a Pan Lancashire
trauma informed strategy to tackle crime in the Lancashire area.
https://www.lancsvrn.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/06/Lancs-VRNStrategy.pdf

5.2

As part of this work the network produced a profile of violent crime for
each District Local authority including Wyre. The profile has been
considered by Wyre Community Safety Partnership and is now
providing a focus for the work of the partnership. The government are
planning to make reducing violence a statutory duty during this
parliament and the work we are now doing will help the partnership
produce an action plan to deal with this issue going forward.

5.3

Building on Martyn’s Law named after Martyn Hett who died in the
Manchester Arena attack the Government is consulting on proposed
legislation which would make it a legal requirement for venue operators
to consider the risk of a terrorist attack and to take steps to protect the
public. Currently private and public owners of venues and sites are not
obliged to act on advice about threats of a terrorist attack and mitigate
the risk.

5.4

The consultation is intended to work out who should be subject to the
duty and the extent of it and to make sure the balance is right between
the need to protect people and the need to make sure it is proportionate.
Among the protect duty proposals are the introduction of free counter
terror training for event staff, assessments of locations to see how
vulnerable they are, the need for venues and local authorities to have

Page 45

clear counter terror action plans and more thorough security checks
including bag searches.
5.5

In taking part in the consultation the council will consider the nature of
the venues and the entertainment and social activities being carried on
there and their capacity, the level of risk and the financial implications so
as to reflect a proportionate approach

5.6

I attended an Elected Members briefing on counter terrorism in April
2021. During that meeting the role of councillors was discussed. As
representatives of their local communities, Elected Members often
understand the challenges, tensions and concerns facing the local area.
This means that they are well positioned to listen to and raise
community concerns, and to be identified as the public face of Prevent
delivery for the area. This provides the opportunity for Elected Members
to talk to communities openly about Prevent, to listen to their concerns,
explain the duty and role of the Local Authority in protecting individuals,
and help to raise awareness about referral mechanisms and supportive
interventions. In order to assist Councillors in undertaking this task Wyre
Council will be issuing the Prevent Elected Members Handbook to every
Councillor.

5.7

During 2020 the council completed its safeguarding review, which
aligned concerns about health with concerns that people are in danger
of being radicalised, modern slavery, child sexual exploitation and child
criminal exploitation. In essence any officer that has concerns about a
particular individual should report the matter to their line manager and
they will consult safeguarding officers within the council. The council
also operate a Wyre & Fylde integrated team to assess vulnerability that
may not reach the safeguarding threshold but is still a concern.

5.8

Youth anti-social behaviour (ASB) continues to be a priority and we
work in partnership with many agencies including Lancashire Police,
Lancashire County Council and the Child and Youth Justice service to
reduce ASB. We have introduced a graduated approach and this has
improved the early identification of young people who are starting to
become involved in ASB and also includes hot spot areas. This involves
a number of interventions which can tackle the behaviour much earlier
to prevent escalation and is undertaken with the involvement and
agreement of parents. Since the easing of lockdown we have seen an
increase in location based ASB and along with our partners plan a
targeted approach over the summer to engage and educate young
people who may be at risk of engaging in this type of behaviour.

5.9

ASB is not just a youth related matter, there has been an increase and
escalation in inter neighbour disputes, often between two sets of
neighbours with no one else involved. These cases make gathering
evidence to support either one of the residents version of events difficult
to prove. As a consequence obtaining a legal remedy to the alleged
anti-social behaviour is not simple, and before embarking on this route
residents should be aware that this could fracture their relationship with
their neighbour further. Therefore residents are advised that before they
embark on this process they see if the matter can be resolved by a

Page 46

friendly discussion as this can often be more effective than a request
from the council.
6.

Comments and questions
6.1

In accordance with procedure rule 11.3 any member of council will be
able to ask me a question or make a comment on the contents of my
report or on any issue, which falls within my area of responsibility. I will
respond to any such questions or comments in accordance with
procedure rule 11.5.

dem/cou/cr/21/0807 Neighbourhood

Page 47

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8f

Report of:

To:

Date

Councillor Lynne Bowen,
Leisure, Health and Community
Engagement Portfolio Holder

Council

8 July 2021

Executive Report: Leisure, Health and Community Engagement Portfolio
Holder
1.

Purpose of report
1.1

2.

To inform Council of progress on key objectives and the current
position on issues within the Leisure, Health and Community
Engagement Portfolio, as set out below.

Wyre Community Hub
2.1

Over the past fifteen months the council has stepped up in ways never
seen before in order to meet the challenges faced by the community
owing to Covid. Our staff have supported the clinically extremely
vulnerable and others who have reached out for support. This has
included support to address complex welfare needs including sickness,
bereavement, job loss, shielding, isolation and mental health issues.
Other support included the provision of food and the delivery of essential
medication.

2.2

From April 2020 to start of June, the Hub has dealt with almost 17,000
contacts. We have worked very closely with local food banks to help
distribute food parcels to feed over 52,000 people. The majority of the
parcels have been provided through Fleetwood Together but also by
other smaller groups including the Garstang Volunteer Force, Preesall
and Knott End Help Group, The Bellflower Public House and a number
of local church groups. The council could not have achieved what it did
without the commitment and skills of its staff and the support of the
community, charity and voluntary sector that mobilised so quickly. We
are now working with community groups, partners and local NHS social
prescribers to look at and implement reassurance and reintegration of
residents back into activities that seek to improve health and wellbeing
and community spirit.

2.3

The Wyre Community Hub was supported by the Lancashire Volunteer
Partnership whose volunteers continue to support over 90 people so that
they have a friendly person to chat with regularly. Many other successful
relationships have been developed with both statutory and the voluntary,
community and faith sectors. We worked closely with NHS Responders

Page 49

and set up a hub referral dashboard to monitor and check that all
residents referred were picked up by a responder when required. This
service was particularly useful for helping with transport to and from
medical appointments.
3.

Wyre Test and Trace
3.1

4.

5.

The council continues to support NHS Test and Trace to ensure
everyone testing positive for covid gets a call to ensure they are isolating
and are ok. We are passed contacts that NHS Test and Trace have been
unable to contact after 24 hours. We have now contacted over 1050
residents who have tested positive to run through the contact tracing
process with a 58% completion rate, 18% we were unable to contact and
we found about 10% were in hospital. 30% of the cases were followed
up with a door knock by the Environmental Health Team. This has been
a great team effort across the council with staff from across the services
making calls. This work has helped to keep the positive rates in Wyre as
low as possible. We have also been supporting approximately 400
residents (those with positive cases and also their contacts) to self
isolate by ringing and texting them regularly throughout the ten day
isolation period.

Environmental Health
4.1

The Environmental Health Service has been heavily involved in the
policing of the Covid-19 Regulations within businesses, ensuring that
businesses that should be shut remained closed and that when they
were allowed to be open they followed the legislation and guidance as
far as possible. On the whole businesses have responded extremely well
and been compliant and encouraged the public to follow the guidance
and I would like to thank them for their efforts.

4.2

District Local Authorities have been the operational arm for the Director
of Public Health, Lancashire County Council, throughout the response.
As a result of the pandemic the links between District Environmental
Health teams and the Lancashire Public Health team has been
strengthened. Wyre Council, utilising staff from all services have
provided community support working with volunteers, outbreak
management support in work settings, introduced a local test and trace
team, introduced Covid Marshalls, supported Lancashire County Council
in increasing community testing and throughout provided effective
communication on the current situation.

Health and Wellbeing Activities
5.1

Since March, we have been re-starting many of our health and wellbeing
sessions, particularly those outdoor sessions – Health Rides, Bump &
buggy, TRY Sports, Wyre wheels, etc. Wyre wheels, the disability cycling
programme has re-launched in Memorial Park, with help from the
disability charity – Together We Can Do and the team at Cycling
Projects. The session is popular and we hope to increase the number
and variety of activities available for people with disabilities in the future.
The Health rides programme has now expanded to Over Wyre, with
potentially Knott End and Garstang also being considered. There are

Page 50

approximately five rides a month with up to seven participants per ride.
We have been working with local health professionals to ensure they are
aware of the variety of health and wellbeing activities that they can
signpost patients to. We have provided a referral form, a regular enewsletter and have set up new social media accounts under our
Healthier Wyre banner to ensure that our messages reach people –
residents and professionals.
6.

Wyre Weight Management Programme
6.1

7.

8.

The Wyre Weight Management Programme successfully launched in
February 2021. The programme, which is provided by Slimming World
and funded by Lancashire County Council (Public Health), was planned
and commissioned by our officers. We have already supported 85
people to start on their free 12 weeks of Slimming World. This is one of
the largest intakes so far across Lancashire and we are very pleased
with progress. The programme is funded for three years and we have
recently been told that our funding will double for this year, so we look
forward to offering further support to residents to lose weight.

Leisure Centre Update
7.1

On 12 April Thornton and Garstang Leisure Centres both reopened. This
was followed by the reopening of Fleetwood Leisure Centre, including
the pool and the pool at Garstang on 1 May. The phased re-openings
across the gyms, swimming and classes have gone very well and a
recent promotional offer of 12 months membership for £199 has proven
very popular and has now been extended to the end of June. Where
waiting lists have developed for the most popular classes and activities
the YMCA has adjusted programmes to accommodate more participants
whenever social distancing has allowed. Feedback from members is
very positive and we really do appreciate their understanding and
support whilst the impact of covid measures on leisure centre operations
continue.

7.2

Poulton Leisure Centre continues to operate as a Lateral Flow Test site
but plans are underway for its re-opening later in the summer.
Total memberships across all Wyre leisure centres were 5,848 at the
end of May 21 and so the organisation has gained good ground towards
recovering its membership levels which were 6,415 in May 2019.

Tourism and Visitor Services
8.1

Wyre has been a popular filming location in the last six months and this
is something that we want to continue to support and develop as part of
our tourism recovery: Sky One filmed for an episode of the next series of COBRA with
Robert Carlyle in November 2020 and February 2021. The
location used was Fleetwood Seafront and the RNLI station.
 Disney filmed in Cleveleys in May 2021. The area used was
Cleveleys promenade from Café Cove to Cleveleys Plaza.
 BBC 2 filmed in Fleetwood for the Saving Lives at Sea
programme. Using the RNLI and Coast Watch at Rossall Point.

Page 51



9.

Marketing Lancashire as part of the City of Culture 2025 Bid,
filmed the CoastWatch Team at Rossall Point, RNLI at Fleetwood
and Fleetwood Beach Kiosk.

8.2

The benefits of filming in Wyre to local people and businesses cannot be
underestimated. These activities employ many local people, crew who
are from further afield are also staying locally, everyone is eating and
drinking locally, and rooms/buildings have been rented that may well
have been underutilised as this time. All of which will have a
positive effect on the local economy. Statistics from Creative England
NW advise that a major blockbuster pumps £40,000 per week into the
local economy. This filming will also have a positive effect on tourism
once it’s released as viewers want to visit the locations.

8.3

We have been working with our Fylde Coast partners to support tourism
recovery with a particular focus on attracting coaches back to the Fylde
Coast. We did a joint presentation with 40 members of the Coach
Passenger Transport Federation (Coach Drivers and Operators) to
promote visits to the area and showcase incentives. We are planning a
presence at the British Travel Trade Fair in Birmingham in September to
showcase itineraries and promote Wyre’s visitor assets and are
preparing a joint online publication with Fylde to promote a set of 8 rural
walks each, 16 in total.

Marine Hall and Thornton Little Theatre
9.1

The theatres have been well utilised during the pandemic. The
Fleetwood Together Foodbank moved back into Marine Hall in
November 2020 and moved out again just after Easter 2021. Thornton
Little Theatre has been well used by the Torentum Primary Care
Network for Covid-19 vaccinations.

9.2

Theatres were legally allowed to reopen from 17 May 2021, with social
distancing in place. We therefore reopened Marine Hall Box Office and
TIC for in person visits from 19 May. A telephone and online service was
maintained throughout the Pandemic. Many shows and events which
were planned for the first part of this year have been postponed,
rescheduled or cancelled, owing to uncertainty around dates for the
lifting of restrictions. This has involved contacting hundreds of customers
to reallocate tickets and refunds.

9.3

We have been able to host regular Sunday morning bookings at Marine
Hall since 23 May. Prior to the Pandemic, ‘Light and Life’ hired Thornton
Little Theatre. However, they have been unable to return there owing to
the current restrictions. We have been able to accommodate this
booking at Marine Hall with social distancing and other Covid safety
measures in place. The bookings have been a useful pilot for reopening
the Theatre safely.

Page 52

10.

9.4

Following on from the Prime Minister’s announcement on 14 June,
weddings are now allowed to go ahead with higher numbers, provided a
risk assessment is put in place and subject to some specific measures.
The first reopening Wedding Ceremony and Reception will take place at
Marine Hall on 26 June. This is closely followed by another three
wedding ceremonies at The Mount Pavilion over the next week.
Two further weddings are booked in for August. Most other large
weddings have rescheduled for 2022.

9.5

Unfortunately there has been a significant amount of vandalism around
Marine Hall and The Mount Pavilion over the last few months. In
particular, there have been many smashed windows, resulting in
expensive repairs, and also delaying the reopening of our bars. We are
working with the Police and our partners to try and address these issues.

Bereavement Services
10.1 I am pleased to say that the Bereavement Service was once again
shortlisted in the annual Association of Public Service excellence (APSE)
for a best performing service. The team are to be congratulated on their
hard work at a particularly difficult time.

11.

Comments and questions
11.1

In accordance with procedure rule 11.3 any member of Council will be
able to ask me a question or make a comment on the contents of my
report or on any issue, which falls within my area of responsibility. I will
respond to any such questions or comments in accordance with
Procedure Rule 11.5.

dem/cou/cr/21/0807 Leisure(002)

Page 53

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9

Report of:

Meeting

Date

Councillor Michael Vincent,
Resources Portfolio Holder
and Clare James, Corporate
Director Resources and S151
Officer

Council

8 July 2021

Treasury management activity 2020/21
1.

Purpose of report
1.1

2.

Outcomes
2.1

3.

An informed Council who have an understanding of Treasury
Management activity, in line with the approved Treasury Management
Policy and Strategy Statements and Treasury Management Practices.

Recommendation
3.1

4.

To report on the overall position and activities in respect of Treasury
Management for the financial year 2020/21.

That the Annual report on Treasury Management Activity for the 2020/21
financial year be approved.

Background
4.1

This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local
Government Act 2003 to produce an annual treasury management review
of activities and the actual prudential and treasury indicators for 2020/21.
This report meets the requirements of both the Chartered Institute of
Public Finance and Accounting (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury
Management (the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital
Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code).

4.2

During 2020/21 the minimum reporting requirements were that the full
Council should receive the following reports:


An annual treasury strategy in advance of the year (reviewed by
Cabinet 25/03/2020 and recommended to Council. However,

Page 55




4.3

5.

owing to delays caused by Covid-19, Council did not approve the
strategy until its meeting held on 17/09/2020).
A mid-year (minimum) treasury update report (Council
12/11/2020).
An annual review following the end of the year describing the
activity compared to the strategy (this report).

The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the
review and scrutiny of treasury management policy and activities. This
report, is, therefore, important in that respect, as it provides details of the
outturn position for treasury activities and highlights compliance with the
Council’s policies previously approved by members. In January 2020 all
members were offered Treasury Management Training from Link Asset
Services; this included members of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee. Further training was given on 18 January 2021 to the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

Key issues and proposals
5.1

The Council’s Capital Expenditure and Financing

5.1.1 The council undertakes capital expenditure on long-term assets. These
activities may either be:




Financed immediately through the application of capital or revenue
resources (capital receipts, capital grants, revenue contributions
etc.) which has no resultant impact on the council’s borrowing
need; or
If insufficient financing is available, or a decision is taken not to
apply resources, the capital expenditure will give rise to a
borrowing need.

5.1.2 The actual capital expenditure forms one of the required prudential
indicators. The table below shows the actual capital expenditure and how
this was financed.

Description
Capital expenditure
Financed in year
Unfinanced capital
expenditure

2019/20
Actual
(£000)

2020/21
Budget
(£000)

2020/21
Actual
(£000)

5,979
5,979

11,765
11,765

6,789
6,789

0

0

0

All capital expenditure undertaken during 2020/21 has been fully financed
in the year.

Page 56

5.2

Overall Treasury Position as at 31 March 2021

5.2.1 The council’s treasury position, at the beginning and end of the 2020/21
financial year, was as follows:
31/03/20
Rate/
Avg
Principal Return Life
(£000)
(%)
(Yrs)
1,559

4.43

27

1,563

4.43

26

Total
Investments

(24,771)

0.87

0

(33,124)

0.16

0

Net debt /
(investment)

(23,212)

-

-

(31,561)

-

-

1,559

4.43

27

1,563

4.43

26

11,261

-

-

11,166

-

-

(9,702)

-

-

(9,603)

-

-

Total Debt

Total Debt
Capital
Financing
Requirement
(CFR)
Over /
(under)
borrowing

5.3

31/03/21
Rate/
Avg
Principal Return Life
(£000)
(%)
(Yrs)

The Treasury Management Strategy for 2020/21

5.3.1 Investment returns which had been low during 2019/20, plunged during
2020/21 to near zero. The expectation for interest rates included in the
treasury management strategy for 2020/21 was that the Bank Rate would
continue at 0.75% before rising to 1.25% by the end of 2022/23. This
forecast was invalidated by the Covid-19 pandemic bursting onto the
scene in March 2020, which caused the Monetary Policy Committee to
cut the Bank Rate in March, first to 0.25% and then to 0.10%, in order to
counter the hugely negative impact of the national lockdown on large
swathes of the economy, the Bank of England and the Government also
introduced new programmes of supplying the banking system and the
economy with massive amounts of cheap credit so that banks could help
cash-starved businesses to survive the lockdown. The Government also
supplied huge amounts of finance to local authorities to pass on to
businesses. This meant that for most of the year there was much more
liquidity in financial markets than there was demand to borrow, with the
consequent effect that investment earnings rates plummeted.

Page 57

5.3.2 Whilst the council has taken a cautious approach to investing, it is also
fully appreciative of changes to regulatory requirements for financial
institutions in terms of additional capital and liquidity that came about in
the aftermath of the financial crisis. These requirements have provided a
far stronger basis for financial institutions, with annual stress tests by
regulators evidencing how institutions are now far more able to cope with
extreme stressed market and economic conditions.
5.4

The Borrowing Requirement and Debt

5.4.1 The Council’s underlying need to borrow to finance capital expenditure is
termed the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). The underlying need to
borrow for capital purposes is measured by the CFR, while usable
reserves and working capital are the underlying resources available for
investment. The table below compares the estimated CFR to the debt
which exists at 31 March. This gives an indication of the borrowing
required. It also shows the estimated resources available for investment.
An option is to use these balances to finance the expenditure rather than
investing, often referred to as internal borrowing, so the table gives an
indication of the minimum borrowing requirement through this method.

CFR
Less external borrowing
Borrowing
requirement
Reserves and Balances
Borrowing /
(investment) need

31/03/20
Actual
(£000)
11,261
1,552

31/03/21
Budget
(£000)
11,165
1,552

31/03/21
Actual
(£000)
11,165
1,552

9,709

9,613

9,613

26,803

27,594

27,594*

(17,094)

(17,981)

(17,981)

*Please note the outturn position is still an estimate prior to the sign off of
the accounts expected in September 2021.
5.5

Borrowing Rates and Borrowing Outturn in 2020/21

5.5.1 PWLB rates are based on, and are determined by, gilt (UK Government
bonds) yields through HM Treasury determining a specified margin to add
to gilt yields. The main influences on gilt yields are Bank Rate, inflation
expectations and movement in US treasury yields. We have seen over
the last two years, many bond yields up to 10 years in the Eurozone turn
negative on expectations that the EU would struggle to get growth rates
and inflation up from low levels. In addition, there has, at times, been an
inversion of bond yields in the US whereby 10 year yields have fallen
below shorter term yields. In the past, this has been a precursor of a
recession.

Page 58

5.5.2 HM Treasury imposed two changes of margins over gilt yields for PWLB
rates in 2019/20 without any prior warning. The first took place on 9
October 2019, adding an additional 1% margin over gilts to all PWLB
rates. That increase was then, at least partially, reversed for some forms
of borrowing on 11 March 2020, but not for mainstream non-HRA capital
schemes. A consultation was then held with local authorities and on 25
November 2020, the Chancellor announced the conclusion to the review
over gilt yields for PWLB rates; the standard and certainty margins were
reduced by 1% but a prohibition was introduced to deny access to
borrowing from the PWLB for any local authority which had purchase of
assets for yield in its three year capital programme.
5.5.3 There is likely to be only a gentle rise in PWLB rates over the next three
years as the Bank Rate is not forecast to rise from 0.10% by March 2024
as the Bank of England has clearly stated that it will not raise rates until
inflation is substantially above its target of 2%; this sets a high bar for the
Bank Rate to start rising.
5.5.4 No new borrowing was undertaken during the 2020/21 year. Capital
schemes budgeted for in 2020/21 were funded by grants and
contributions, capital receipts and the Capital Investment Reserve. No
rescheduling was done during the year as the average 1% differential
between PWLB new borrowing rates and premature repayment rates
made rescheduling unviable. There were no short-term borrowing
transactions (i.e. less than 365 days) during 2020/21.
The council has external borrowing with the Public Works Loan Board.
The maturity structure of the debt is as follows:

Under 12 months
12 months and over and within 20 years
20 years and over and within 30 years
30 years and over and within 50 years

31/03/20
Actual
(£000)

31/03/21
Actual
(£000)

552
1,000

552
1,000

5.5.5 Interest payments in respect of long-term borrowing for the 2020/21
financial year totalled £68,830, which was in line with the full year budget
of £68,830. The actual interest payments, including miscellaneous
payments for the year to 31 March is £69,326 compared to the full year
budget of £68,850.
5.5.6 The council incurs charges at 4% over the current base rate for net
overdrawn balances with no annual arrangement fee. The council’s net
bank account position was not overdrawn during the financial year
2020/21.

Page 59

5.6

Investments

5.6.1 Investment Policy – the council’s investment policy is governed by the
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG)
investment guidance, which has been implemented in the annual
investment strategy approved by the Council on 17 September 2020.
This policy sets out the approach for choosing investment counterparties,
and is based on credit ratings provided by the three main credit rating
agencies, (Standard and Poor’s (S&P), Moody’s and Fitch Ratings),
supplemented by additional market data, (such as ratings outlooks, credit
default swaps, bank share prices etc.).
5.6.2 The investment activity during the year conformed to the approved
strategy, and the council had no liquidity difficulties.
5.6.3 Investments held by the council – internally managed funds earned an
average of 0.16%. The comparable performance indicator is the average
7 day LIBID (London Interbank Bid Rate) which was -0.07%. The equated
investments are analysed in the table below:
Equated
Investment
Principal
(£)

Interest
Due
(£)

Rate of
Return
(%)

Benchmark
Return
(%)

3,698,631

14,331

0.57%

-0.07%

328,767

3,616

1.10%

-0.07%

1,413,699

6,131

0.01%

-0.07%

Qatar 1 month

2,260,275

4,969

0.60%

-0.07%

Qatar 3 months

2,194,521

4,989

0.95%

-0.07%

Handelsbanken IA

3,797,261

3,481

0.35%

-0.07%

1,227,151

366

0.05%

-0.07%

55,069

5

0.55%

-0.07%

NatWest Liquidity

3,068,652

2,365

0.30%

-0.07%

LGIM

5,550,138

6,292

0.36%

-0.07%

Insight

3,009,590

2,486

0.22%

-0.07%

Santander 35 day
Notice
Bank of Scotland
95 day Notice
Handelsbanken 35
day Notice

Bank of Scotland
Call Account
Bank of Scotland
Call Account (new)

Page 60

Deutsche

3,792,152

4,025

0.29%

-0.07%

Prime Rate

6,016,440

6,710

0.37%

-0.07%

36,412,346

59,768

0.16%

-0.07%

Total

5.6.4 Interest receivable from investments for the 2020/21 financial year totals
£59,768 compared to the full year budget of £70,000. Interest overall
including miscellaneous items, received in the year totalled £63,730
compared to a budgeted figure of £74,000.
5.6.5 There have been no occasions of funds over £100,000 remaining in the
council’s overnight general account since February 2018 when the
NatWest roll up facility and control account was activated.
5.7

Other Issues / Updates

5.7.1 Following the consultation undertaken by MHCLG on IFRS9, the
Government has introduced a mandatory statutory override for local
authorities to reverse out all unrealised fair value movements resulting
from pooled investment funds. This was effective from 1 April 2018. The
statutory override applies for five years from this date. Local authorities
are required to disclose the net impact of the unrealised fair value
movements in a separate unusable reserve throughout the duration of the
override in order for the Government to keep the override under review
and to maintain a form of transparency. To date Wyre Council have not
been required to make any adjustments/disclosures in relation to this.
5.7.2 During 2020/21 the council received grant funding from the Government
in relation to the Covid-19 outbreak which led to an increase in balances
held by the council. To ensure that the council was still in compliance with
approved counterparty limits, the Corporate Director Resources
approved, through delegated authority, subsequently ratified by full
Council, amendments to the limits. At no point during 2020/21 was the
council in breach of these limits.
5.7.3 The implementation of IFRS16, bringing currently off balance sheet
leased assets onto the balance sheet, has been delayed until 2022/23.

Financial and legal implications
Finance
Legal

Considered in detail in the report above.
The approval of the recommendation will ensure that the
statutory requirements have been complied with.

Page 61

Other risks/implications: checklist
If there are significant implications arising from this report on any issues marked with
a  below, the report author will have consulted with the appropriate specialist
officers on those implications and addressed them in the body of the report. There
are no significant implications arising directly from this report, for those issues
marked with a x.
/x

risks/implications

/x

community safety

x

asset management

x

equality and diversity

x

climate change

x

sustainability

x

ICT

x

health and safety

x

data protection

x

risks/implications

Processing Personal Data
In addition to considering data protection along with the other risks/ implications, the
report author will need to decide if a ‘privacy impact assessment (PIA)’ is also
required. If the decision(s) recommended in this report will result in the collection and
processing of personal data for the first time (i.e. purchase of a new system, a new
working arrangement with a third party) a PIA will need to have been completed and
signed off by Data Protection Officer before the decision is taken in compliance with
the Data Protection Act 2018.
report author

telephone no.

email

date

Jo McCaffery

01253 887312

Joanne.McCaffery@wyre.gov.uk

17/06/21

List of background papers:
name of document

date

None
List of appendices
Appendix 1 – Prudential and Treasury Indicators.

dem/cou/cr/21/0807jm1

Page 62

where available for inspection

Appendix 1
2019/20 2020/21 2020/21
Actual Estimate Actual
(£000)
(£000)
(£000)
5,979
11,764
6,789

1. Prudential Indicators
Capital Expenditure
Ratio of financing costs to net
revenue stream

-0.39%

0.50%

0.50%

Gross Borrowing requirement
General Fund

1,559

1,559

1,563

Gross debt

1,559

1,559

1,563

11,261

11,165

11,165

-96

-96

-96

CFR
Annual change in CFR
2. Treasury Management Indicators

2019/20 2020/21 2020/21
Actual Estimate Actual
(£'000)
(£'000)
(£'000)

Authorised Limit for external debt
borrowing
Other long term liabilities
Total

20,000
0
20,000

20,000
0
20,000

20,000
0
20,000

Operational Boundary for external
debt borrowing
Other long term liabilities
Total

13,452
7
13,459

13,452
7
13,459

13,452
11
13,463

1,559

1,559

1,563

Actual external debt

Maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing during
2020/21
Under 12 month
12 months and within 24 months
24 months and within 5 year
5 years and within 10 years
10 years and above

upper limit
100%
45%
75%
75%
100%

lower limit
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%

These gross limits are set to avoid large concentrations of fixed rate debt that has the
same maturity structure and would therefore need to be replaced at the same time.

Page 63

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10

Report of:

Meeting

Date

Councillor David Henderson,
Leader of the Council

Council

8 July 2021

Updating net-zero emissions targets
1.

Purpose of report
1.1

2.

3.

4.

To seek council approval to update the council’s net-zero emissions
targets, in line with new government commitments.

Outcomes
2.1

Wyre will align with the government’s new climate change commitments,
bringing the net-zero emissions targets for council operations and the
wider borough forward, from 100% by 2050 to 78% by 2035.

2.2

The actions to address climate change in Wyre will be accelerated in
response to this growing threat, to ensure a cleaner, greener Wyre for the
future.

Recommendations
3.1

That approval is given to update the net-zero emissions targets for
council operations, from 100% by 2050 to 78% by 2035, based on
2018/19 levels.

3.2

That the target to support the borough to achieve net-zero emissions is
also updated to the same timescale.

Background
4.1

A net-zero target refers to achieving a balance of greenhouse gas
emissions; by reducing the amount of emissions released from an activity
as much as possible, alongside meaningful measures to offset any
remaining emissions.

Page 65

5.

4.2

On 11 July 2019, at a full Council meeting, members approved a motion
to declare a Climate Emergency1. This included a commitment to make
the council’s activities net-zero by 2050, as well as supporting the
relevant agencies towards achieving net-zero emissions across Wyre
within the same timescale. These targets went above existing
government targets at the time, which were to reduce emissions by 80%
by 2050.

4.3

Recently, on 20 April 2021, the government announced that the sixth
Carbon Budget will commit the UK to cut emissions by 78% by 2035,
based on 1990 levels. This will be enshrined in law by the end of June
2021, bringing forward the current target date by 15 years. This accepts
advice from the independent Climate Change Committee (CCC),
recognising that the costs of action on climate change are outweighed by
the significant benefits: reducing polluting emissions, as well as bringing
fuel savings, improvements to air quality and enhancing biodiversity. As
the world’s most ambitious climate target, it highlights that urgent action
is needed now and that the UK is taking the climate emergency seriously.

Key issues and proposals
5.1

The Baseline Carbon Footprint Report2 identified that the main sources of
emissions within the council were generated from gas heating, the
authority’s fleet and electricity use. Within the borough, domestic gas use,
industry and commercial gas and electricity use and minor road transport
were the highest emitters. As such, work to rapidly reduce emissions
must target these key sources across Wyre.

5.2

Three options were considered for updating the council’s emissions
targets: achieving 100% net-zero emissions by 2035; a 78% reduction by
2035 as pledged by the government; or keeping the previous target to
achieve 100% net-zero emissions by 2050.

5.3

It was considered that keeping the previous target of 100% net-zero
emissions by 2050 was no longer viable. As stated in the council’s
climate emergency declaration, the council notes that the impacts of
climate breakdown are already causing serious damage around the
world. The Special Report on Global Warming of 1.5 degrees centigrade,
published by the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change in October
2018, describes the enormous harm a 2°C average rise in global
temperatures is likely to cause, as opposed to limiting this to 1.5°C with
ambitious action across all sectors. Emissions released now will remain
in our atmosphere for 300 to 1,000 years3. It is therefore vital that efforts

1

Climate Emergency Declaration, available online:
https://www.wyre.gov.uk/info/200489/climate_change/1363/climate_emergency_declaration
2

Baseline Carbon Footprint Report, available online:
https://www.wyre.gov.uk/info/200489/climate_change/1364/where_we_are_now
3

Buis, A 2019, NASA, accessed 24 May 2021, <https://climate.nasa.gov/news/2915/the-atmospheregetting-a-handle-on-carbon-dioxide/>

Page 66

should be made to reduce all emissions as rapidly as possible, and
bringing forward the target date from 2050 to 2035 would instil this
necessary action to successfully tackle the emergency.
5.4

Furthermore, the baseline carbon footprint report identified that the
council’s emissions amount to approximately 0.5% of emissions across
the borough. With the aid of government support, as proposed in the
upcoming Carbon Budget, reducing emissions by 2035 in line with
government targets should be more attainable. This would enable the
council to take advantage of changes in national policy, technological
developments and market conditions that will be driven forward at a
national level, which may enable the more difficult areas of emissions to
be reduced.

5.5

Committing to bringing forward the net-zero target will set an example for
other organisations in the borough by demonstrating leadership on the
climate change agenda in Wyre. This will encourage other organisations
and businesses to follow suit, helping to generate green jobs for the local
economy, alongside co-benefits such as improved health and wellbeing
for residents, all listed in the Council’s Business Plan vision for Wyre.

5.6

It was considered that a target of 78% emissions reduction by 2035 was
more achievable than 100% by this date but still ambitious. At the current
time, it is unlikely that emissions will be fully reduced in all areas of the
council by then. For example, in waste collection it is not yet viable or
environmentally sustainable to switch to electric wagons, although
technology is rapidly developing in this area. However, as a net-zero
target, these difficult to reach emissions would be balanced with
meaningful investment into offsetting projects. The council will continue to
keep the objectives under review with the help of the Climate Change
Policy Group and should it be possible to improve on the updated target
this will be welcomed.

5.7

The financial impact of bringing forward the net-zero target data would be
addressed separately, as agreed at the Cabinet meeting on 13 January
2021, which stated that key actions within the Climate Change Action
Plan that require further investment would be the subject of separate
reports for approval. However, in order to meet any of these net-zero
targets and rapidly reduce emissions, it is important to note that
significant investment in infrastructure, building upgrades and offsetting
projects are required as a matter of urgency. External funding will be
sourced wherever possible to support these initiatives.

Financial and legal implications
Finance

There are no financial implications arising directly from this
report.

Page 67

Legal

There is a legally binding international treaty on climate
change in place which was adopted by 196 parties
including the UK in 2015. (The Paris Agreement).
The government’s proposed carbon budget and the
Council’s commitments outlined in this report help to
deliver the goals set out in the Treaty.
Other risks/implications: checklist

If there are significant implications arising from this report on any issues marked with
a  below, the report author will have consulted with the appropriate specialist
officers on those implications and addressed them in the body of the report. There
are no significant implications arising directly from this report, for those issues
marked with a x.
/x

risks/implications

/x

community safety

x

asset management



equality and diversity

x

climate change



sustainability



ICT

x

health and safety

x

data protection

x

risks/implications

Processing Personal Data
In addition to considering data protection along with the other risks/ implications, the
report author will need to decide if a ‘privacy impact assessment (PIA)’ is also
required. If the decision(s) recommended in this report will result in the collection and
processing of personal data for the first time (i.e. purchase of a new system, a new
working arrangement with a third party) a PIA will need to have been completed and
signed off by Data Protection Officer before the decision is taken in compliance with
the Data Protection Act 2018.
report author

telephone no.

email

date

Sammy Gray,
Climate Change and
Environmental
Projects Officer

01253 887317

sammy.gray@wyre.gov.uk

26/05/2021

List of background papers:
name of document

date

None
List of appendices
None
dem/cou/cr/21/0807sg1

Page 68

where available for inspection

Agenda Item 11

Report of:

Meeting

Date

Councillor David Henderson,
Leader of the Council and
Garry Payne, Chief Executive

Council

8 July 2021

Appointments to committees and groups
1.

Purpose of report
1.1

2.

Outcomes
2.1

3.

4.

Effective arrangements to carry out the Council’s non-executive decision
making and advisory functions.

Recommendations
3.1

That Councillor Webster of the Conservative group be appointed to the
Overview and Scrutiny committee in place of Councillor Collinson.

3.2

That Councillor Alan Vincent be appointed to the Licensing Committee in
place of Councillor Collinson.

3.3

That Councillor Alan Vincent be appointed to the Employment and
Appeals Committee in place of Councillor Collinson.

3.4

That Councillor Leech be appointed to the Planning Policy Working
Group in place of Councillor Collinson.

Background
4.1

5.

To enable changes to be made to the membership of committees for the
remainder of the 2021/22 Municipal Year.

Changes to the membership of three committees and one working group
are required as a result of Councillor Alan Vincent standing down from
the Cabinet and being replaced by Councillor Collinson.

Key issues and proposals
5.1

These appointments are a straight replacement of one councillor by
another from the same group and so there are no immediate implications
for the political balance calculations, which will remain the same.

Page 69

Financial and legal implications
Finance
Legal

There are no additional financial implications associated
with this report.
There are no legal implications associated with this report.
Other risks/implications: checklist

If there are significant implications arising from this report on any issues marked with
a  below, the report author will have consulted with the appropriate specialist
officers on those implications and addressed them in the body of the report. There
are no significant implications arising directly from this report, for those issues
marked with a x.
/x

risks/implications

/x

community safety

x

asset management

x

equality and diversity

x

climate change

x

sustainability

x

ICT

x

health and safety

x

data protection

x

risks/implications

Processing Personal Data
In addition to considering data protection along with the other risks/ implications, the
report author will need to decide if a ‘privacy impact assessment (PIA)’ is also
required. If the decision(s) recommended in this report will result in the collection and
processing of personal data for the first time (i.e. purchase of a new system, a new
working arrangement with a third party) a PIA will need to have been completed and
signed off by Data Protection Officer before the decision is taken in compliance with
the Data Protection Act 2018.
report author

telephone no.

email

date

Peter Foulsham

01253 887606

peter.foulsham@wyre.gov.uk

11/06/2021

List of background papers:
name of document

date

None
List of appendices
None.

Dems/council/0807pf3

Page 70

where available for inspection

Agenda Item 12

Report of:

Meeting

Date

Councillor David Henderson,
Leader of the Council and
Garry Payne, Chief Executive

Council

8 July 2021

Appointment to outside body

1.

Purpose of report
1.1

2.

Outcomes
2.1

3.

That Councillor Liz Webster be appointed as one of the council’s two
representatives on the Garstang Town Trust in place of Councillor Alice
Collinson until the next elections in May 2023.

Background
4.1

5.

Effective involvement and communication with various organisations
which operate in the Borough and impact on the wellbeing of residents.

Recommendation
3.1

4.

To report a change of councillor appointed as a representative on the
Garstang Town Trust for the period until the next elections in May 2023.

Appointments to outside bodies were last made at the Annual Council
meeting on 16 May 2019. Representatives were to remain in place until
the next Council elections in May 2023, unless he or she resigned, the
organisation no longer required a representative or a vacancy otherwise
occurred.

Key issues and proposals
5.1

Councillor Alice Collinson was appointed to the Cabinet on 1 June 2021.
As a result she has requested to stand down from her nomination as a
representative on the Garstang Town Trust and the Council is requested
to approve her replacement by Councillor Liz Webster.

Page 71

Financial and legal implications
Finance
Legal

There are no financial implications associated with this
report.
There are no legal implications associated with this report.
Other risks/implications: checklist

If there are significant implications arising from this report on any issues marked with
a  below, the report author will have consulted with the appropriate specialist
officers on those implications and addressed them in the body of the report. There
are no significant implications arising directly from this report, for those issues
marked with a x.
/x

risks/implications

/x

community safety

x

asset management

x

equality and diversity

x

climate change

x

sustainability

x

ICT

x

health and safety

x

data protection

x

risks/implications

Processing Personal Data
In addition to considering data protection along with the other risks/ implications, the
report author will need to decide if a ‘privacy impact assessment (PIA)’ is also
required. If the decision(s) recommended in this report will result in the collection
and processing of personal data for the first time (i.e. purchase of a new system, a
new working arrangement with a third party) a PIA will need to have been completed
and signed off by Data Protection Officer before the decision is taken in compliance
with the Data Protection Act 2018.
report author

telephone no.

email

date

Peter Foulsham

01253 887606

Peter.foulsham@wyre.gov.uk

11/06/2021

List of background papers:
name of document

date

None.
List of appendices
None.

Dems/council/0807pf5

Page 72

where available for inspection

